
 

 

[Freedom (Sandusky), Cattaraugus Co. NY] 

 
Sandusky is situated on Clear Creek, a little north of the centre of the town. It 

contains 2 church edifices (Baptist and Universalist), 3 religious societies, 1 hotel, 
1 cheese-factory, 1 cheese-box factory, 1 carriage-factory, a woollen-mill, 1 grist-

mills, 3 saw-mills, 1 tannery, district school-house with two departments, post-
office, 5 stores of general merchandise, 1 drug-store, 1 hardware-store, 1 stove- 

and tin-store, 1 boot- and shoe-store, 2 shoe-shops, 2 meat-markets, 2 medical, 1 
dental, and 1 clergyman’s offices, and about 250 inhabitants.  

 
The First Universalist Church at Sandusky was organized with 25 members, 

May 24, 1845, by Rev. Gideon S. Gowdy, their first pastor. The first meetings were 
held at the house of Elias Wood. The church edifice was erected the same year, at 

a cost of $1500, and has sittings for 200 persons. Among the original members 
were Elias Wood, David Olnes, Henry Crandall, Walter B. Smith, Eber Holmes, Lot 

Crowel, Enoch Howlet, Samuel Norton. 

There are about 40 members, but the society is without a pastor. 
 

 
Frankin Ellis, Ed., excerpt from “Town of Freedom,” in History of Cattaraugus 

County, New York [with] Illustrations and Biographical Sketches of Some of its 
Prominent Men and Pioneers (Philadelphia: L.H. Everts, 1879) pp. 390-399 
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